Psychological therapies for people with borderline personality disorder (Review)

Binks C, Fenton M, McCarthy L, Lee T, Adams CE, Duggan C



This is a reprint of a Cochrane review, prepared and maintained by The Cochrane Collaboration and published in *The Cochrane Library* 2009, Issue 1

http://www.thecochranelibrary.com



[Intervention Review]

Psychological therapies for people with borderline personality disorder

Claire Binks¹, Mark Fenton², Lucy McCarthy³, Tracey Lee⁴, Clive E Adams⁵, Conor Duggan⁶

¹C/o Jane Dennis, SPS, CDPLPG, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK. ²Database of Uncertainties about the Effects of Treatments (DUETs), James Lind Initiative, Oxford, UK. ³East Midlands Centre for Forensic Mental Health, Nottingham Health Care NHS Trust, Leicester, UK. ⁴Centre for Labour Market Studies, University of Leicester, Leicester, UK. ⁵Cochrane Schizophrenia Group, University of Nottingham, Nottingham, UK. ⁶Division of Psychiatry, Duncan Macmillan House, Nottingham, UK

Contact address: Claire Binks, C/o Jane Dennis, SPS, CDPLPG, University of Bristol, 8 Priory , Bristol, BS8 1TZ, UK. clairebinks@hotmail.com,J.Dennis@bris.ac.uk.

Editorial group: Cochrane Developmental, Psychosocial and Learning Problems Group. **Publication status and date:** Edited (no change to conclusions), published in Issue 1, 2009. **Review content assessed as up-to-date:** 26 August 2005.

Citation: Binks C, Fenton M, McCarthy L, Lee T, Adams CE, Duggan C. Psychological therapies for people with borderline personality disorder. *Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews* 2006, Issue 1. Art. No.: CD005652. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD005652.

Copyright © 2009 The Cochrane Collaboration. Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd.

ABSTRACT

Background

Borderline personality disorder (BPD) is a relatively common personality disorder with a major impact on health services as those affected often present in crisis, often self-harming.

Objectives

To evaluate the effects of psychological interventions for people with borderline personality disorder.

Search strategy

We conducted a systematic search of 26 specialist and general bibliographic databases (December 2002) and searched relevant reference lists for further trials.

Selection criteria

All relevant clinical randomised controlled trials involving psychological treatments for people with BPD. The definition of psychological treatments included behavioural, cognitive-behavioural, psychodynamic and psychoanalytic.

Data collection and analysis

We independently selected, quality assessed and data extracted studies. For binary outcomes we calculated a standard estimation of the risk ratio (RR), its 95% confidence interval (CI), and where possible the number need to help/harm (NNT/H). For continuous outcomes, endpoint data were preferred to change data. Non-skewed data from valid scales were summated using a weighted mean difference (WMD).

Main results

We identified seven studies involving 262 people, and five separate comparisons. Comparing dialectical behaviour therapy (DBT) with treatment as usual studies found no difference for the outcome of still meeting SCID-II criteria for the diagnosis of BPD by six months (n=28, 1 RCT, RR 0.69 CI 0.35 to 1.38) or admission to hospital in previous three months (n=28, 1 RCT, RR 0.77 CI 0.28 to 2.14).

Self harm or parasuicide may decrease at 6 to 12 months (n=63, 1 RCT, RR 0.81 CI 0.66 to 0.98, NNT 12 CI 7 to 108). One study detected statistical difference in favour of people receiving DBT compared with those allocated to treatment as usual for average scores of suicidal ideation at 6 months (n=20, MD -15.30 CI -25.46 to -5.14). There was no difference for the outcome of leaving the study early (n=155, 3 RCTs, RR 0.74 CI 0.52 to 1.04). For the outcome of interviewer-assessed alcohol free days, skewed data are reported and tend to favour DBT. When a substance abuse focused DBT was compared with comprehensive validation therapy plus 12-step substance misuse programme no clear differences were found for service outcomes (n=23, 1 RCT, RR imprisoned 1.09 CI 0.64 to 1.87) or leaving the study early (n=23, 1 RCT, RR 7.58 CI 0.44 to 132.08). When dialectical behaviour therapy-oriented treatment is compared with client centred therapy no differences were found for service outcomes (n=24, 1 RCT, RR admitted 0.33 CI 0.08 to 1.33). However, fewer people in the DBT group displayed indicators of parasuicidal behaviour (n=24, RR 0.13 CI 0.02 to 0.85, NNT 2 CI 2 to 11). There were no differences for outcomes of anxiety and depression (n=24, 1 RCT, RR anxiety BAI >/=10 0.60 CI 0.32 to 1.12; RR depression HDRS >/=10 0.43 CI 0.14 to 1.28) but people who received DBT had less general psychiatric severity than those in the control (MD BPRS at 6 months -7.41 CI -13.72 to -1.10). Finally this one relevant study reports skewed data for suicidal ideation with considerably lower scores for people allocated to DBT. When psychoanalytically oriented partial hospitalization was compared with general psychiatric care the former tended to come off best. People who received treatment in a psychoanalytic orientated day hospital were less likely to be admitted into inpatient care when measured at different time points (e.g. n=44, RR admitted to inpatient 24 hour care >18 to 24 months 0.05 CI 0.00 to 0.77, NNT 3 CI 3 to 10) Fewer people in psychoanalytically oriented partial hospitalization needed day hospital intervention in the 18 months after discharge (n=44, 1 RCT, RR 0.04 CI 0.00 to 0.59, NNT 2 CI 2 to 8). More people in the control group took psychotropic medication by the 30 to 36 month follow-up, than those receiving psychoanalytic treatment (n=44, 1 RCT, RR 0.44 CI 0.25 to 0.80, NNT 3 CI 2 to 7). Anxiety and depression scores were generally lower in the psychoanalytically oriented partial hospitalization group (n=44, 1 RCT, RR >/=14 on BDI 0.52 CI 0.34 to 0.80, NNT 3 CI 3 to 6), as are global severity scores. People receiving psychoanalytic care in a day hospital had better social improvement in social adjustment using the SAS-SR at 6 to 12 months compared with people in general psychiatric care (MD -0.70 CI -1.08 to -0.32). Rates of attrition were the same (n=44, 1 RCT, RR leaving the study early 1.00 CI 0.23 to 4.42).

Authors' conclusions

This review suggests that some of the problems frequently encountered by people with borderline personality disorder may be amenable to talking/behavioural treatments but all therapies remain experimental and the studies are too few and small to inspire full confidence in their results. These findings require replication in larger 'real-world' studies.

PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY

Psychological therapies for people with borderline personality disorder

People with borderline personality disorder, are often anxious, depressed, self-harm, in crisis and are difficult to engage in treatment. In this review of the talking/behavioural therapies for people with borderline personality disorder, we identified seven studies involving 262 people, over five separate comparisons. Dialectical behaviour therapy (DBT) included treatment components such as prioritising a hierarchy of target behaviours, telephone coaching, groups skills training, behavioural skill training, contingency management, cognitive modification, exposure to emotional cues, reflection, empathy and acceptance. DBT seemed to be helpful on a wide range of outcomes, such as admission to hospital or incarceration in prison, but the small size of included studies limit confidence in their results.

A second therapy, psychoanalytic orientated day hospital therapy, also seemed to decrease admission and use of prescribed medication and to increase social improvement and social adjustment. Again, this is an experimental treatment with too few data to really allow anyone to feel too confident of the findings. Even if these are trials undertaken by enthusiasts and difficult to apply to everyday care, they do suggest that the problems of people with borderline personality disorder may be amenable to treatment. More well-designed studies are both justifiable and urgently needed.